
 

Lloyd White 

Head of Democratic Services 

London Borough of Hillingdon, 

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

 Putting our residents first 

   

Annual 

Council 

  

To all Members 

of the Council 
 

 

   

Date: THURSDAY, 14 MAY 2015 
 

 

Time: 7.30 PM 
 

Venue: CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 
 

This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in Braille, 
large print or on audio tape.  
Please contact us for further 
information.  
 

  

Published: Wednesday, 6 May 2015 

 Contact:  Lloyd White, Head of 
Democratic Services 
Tel: 01895 556743 
Fax: 01895 277373 
Email: lwhite@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 

This Agenda is available online at:  

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=117&Year=2015 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

 

Useful information for  
residents and visitors 
 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room.  
 
Accessibility 
 
An Induction Loop System is available for use in 
the various meeting rooms. Please contact us for 
further information.  
 
Reporting and filming of meetings 
 
Residents and the media are welcomed to report the proceedings of the public parts of this 
meeting. Any individual or organisation wishing to film proceedings will be permitted, 
subject to 48 hours advance notice and compliance with the Council’s protocol on such 
matters. The Officer Contact shown on the front of this agenda should be contacted first for 
further information. 
 
Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. 
 
In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations. 

 



 

Agenda 
 
 
 

Prayers 
To be said by Mr Alan Wright 
 

1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Declarations of Interest   

 To note any declarations of interest in any matter before the Council  
 

 

3 Election of Mayor 2015/2016   

 To elect a Mayor of the London Borough of Hillingdon to hold office from 14 
May 2015 until his or her successor becomes entitles to act as Mayor. 
 

i) The retiring Mayor, Councillor Dann, to provide a summary of her year 
in office. 

ii) Nominations for Mayor invited by the retiring Mayor - election (if 
necessary). 

iii) Retiring Mayor declares the result.  
 

 

 

Adjournment for the robing of the new Mayor 
 

4 Acceptance of Office by the Mayor   

 i) The newly elected Mayor to make and sign the declaration of 
acceptance of office. 

ii) The Head of Democratic Services to declare the election of the Mayor 
to be complete.  

 

 

5 Appointment of the Deputy Mayor   

 To receive the Mayor's appointment in writing of a Councillor of the Borough 
to be Deputy Mayor for the coming year.  
 

 

6 New Mayor's Announcements   

 To receive announcements from the new Mayor.  
 

 

7 Vote of thanks to the Outgoing Mayor   

 i) Vote of thanks to the outgoing Mayor to be moved and seconded. 
ii) Presentation of Past Mayor's and Past Mayoress' badges.  

 

 

 



 

8 Report of the Head of Democratic Services 1 - 6 

9 Committee Allocations and Membership 2015/2016  7 - 14 

 To determine the number and size of Council Committees and allocate 
Members to serve on those Committees based on the political balance of the 
Council, where required.  
 

 

10 Policy Overview and Scrutiny Committees Annual Report  15 - 38 

 To receive the annual report.  
 

 

11 Statement by the Leader of the Council   

 In accordance with the provisions of the Constitution, to receive, without 
comment, a statement by the Leader of the Council.  
 

 

On the rising of the Annual Meeting if the Council, the Head of 
Democratic Services will convene special meetings of Committees for 
the purpose of appointing Chairmen, Vice-Chairmen and Sub-
Committees, where appropriate. 



 

Annual Council  – 14 May 2015 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES  

 
8.1 AMENDMENTS TO COUNCIL CONSTITUTION 

 
i)  Disciplinary Procedures Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and S151 Officer 

 
1. Background 

 
1.1 The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) 

Regulations 2015 which come into force on 11 May 2015, are aimed at 
simplifying the disciplinary process for the statutory officers of the Council 
i.e. the Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance 
Officer. They remove the requirement that a Designated Independent 
Person (DIP) be appointed to investigate and make a binding 
recommendation on disciplinary action against these statutory officers. 

 
1.2 The Regulations provide that, in place of the DIP process, the decision will 

be taken transparently by full Council, who must consider any advice, 
views or recommendations from an independent panel, the conclusions of 
any investigation into the proposed dismissal, and any representations 
from the officer concerned. 

 
1.3 In the case of a proposed disciplinary action against one of these statutory 

officers, the Council is required to invite independent persons who·have 
been accepted in accordance with the procedure set out in paragraph 2.3 
of the report.  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: That the Head of Democratic Services be authorised 
to make the following amendments to the Constitution to give effect to the 
Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 
2015: 

 
Article 4 - The Full Council 
 
4.04 Terms of Reference 
 
(k) To confirm the appointment or dismissal of the Head of the Paid 

Service; 
(l) To confirm the dismissal of the Monitoring Officer and the Chief 

Finance Officer 
 
(Renumber the remaining provisions accordingly). 
 
Part 3 - Scheme of Delegation to Officers: 
 
Proper Officers for the Purposes of the Constitution: 
 
9. Officers who will issue and accept invitations from independent 

persons to constitute and administer a Panel in accordance with 
Section 102(4) of the Local Government Act 1972for the purposes of 

Agenda Item 8

Page 1



 

Annual Council  – 14 May 2015 

advising the Council on matters relating to the dismissal of the Head of 
the Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer or the Chief Finance Officer: 

 
 Head of Human Resources and Head of Democratic Services. 
 
Part 4 (F) Officer Employment Procedure Rules: 
 
11. Disciplinary Action Against the Council’s Statutory Officers (as 

prescribed by Schedule 3 of the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) 
(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015); 

 
(a) No disciplinary action in respect of the Council’s Chief Executive, its 

Monitoring Officer or its Chief Finance Officer (as defined in Regulation 
2 of the Local Authorities [Standing Orders] [England] Regulations 
2001), except action described in paragraph (b) below, may be taken by 
the Council, or by a Committee, a Sub-Committee, a Joint Committee 
on which the Council is represented or any other person acting on 
behalf of the Council, other than in accordance with the following 
procedure: a recommendation in a report made by a designated 
independent person under Regulation 7 of the above-mentioned 
Regulations (Investigation of alleged misconduct). 

 
i) The Head of Democratic Services and the Head of Human 

Resources acting on behalf of the Council will invite relevant 
independent persons to be considered for appointment to an 
Independent Panel, with a view to appointing at least two such 
persons to the Panel. 
 

ii) In paragraph i) “relevant independent person” means any 
independent person who has been appointed by the Council or, 
where there are fewer than two such persons, such independent 
persons as have been appointed by another authority or 
authorities as the Council considers appropriate. 

 
iii) Subject to paragraph iv), the Council must appoint to the Panel 

such relevant independent persons who have accepted an 
invitation issued in accordance with paragraph i) in accordance 
with the following priority order— 
• a relevant independent person who has been appointed by the 
Council and who is a local government elector; 

• any other relevant independent person who has been appointed 
by the Council; 

• a relevant independent person who has been appointed by 
another authority or authorities. 
 

iv) The Council is not required to appoint more than two relevant 
independent persons in accordance with paragraph iii) but may do 
so. 
 

v) The Panel must be appointed at least 20 working days before the 
meeting of the Council to consider whether or not to approve a 
proposal to dismiss the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer or 

Page 2



 

Annual Council  – 14 May 2015 

Chief Finance Officer. 
 

vi) Before Full Council votes on whether or not to approve a 
dismissal, it must take into account, in particular— 
• any advice, views or recommendations of the Panel; 
• the conclusions of any investigation into the proposed 

dismissal; and 
• any representations from the Chief Executive, Monitoring 

Officer or Chief Finance Officer, as appropriate. 
 

vii) Any remuneration, allowances or fees paid by the Council to an 
independent person appointed to the Panel must not exceed the 
level of remuneration paid to the Standards Committee 
Independent Person. 

 
 In paragraph a) “disciplinary action” means ‘any action occasioned by 

alleged misconduct which, if proved, would, according to the usual 
practice of the Council, be recorded on the member of staff’s personal 
file, and includes any proposal for dismissal of a member of staff for 
any reason other than redundancy, permanent ill-health or infirmity of 
mind or body, but does not include failure to renew a contract of 
employment for a fixed term unless the Council has undertaken to 
renew such a contract. 

 
(b) The action mentioned in paragraph (a) above is suspension of the 

officer for the purpose of investigating the alleged misconduct 
occasioning the action; and any such suspension must be on full pay 
and terminate no later than the expiry of two months beginning on the 
day on which the suspension takes effect. 

 
2. Information 

 
2.1 The  statutory officers of a Council i.e. the Head of Paid Service, the 

Monitoring Officer, and the Chief Finance Officer, have statutory 
responsibilities to discharge to their Councils. Since they work with and report 
to the elected Members, they discharge these responsibilities in a political 
environment. As a result, statutory protection requiring an appointment of a 
Designated Independent Person (DIP) to investigate any allegation of 
misconduct against these officers was introduced in 2001. No disciplinary 
action in respect of the officers may be taken other than in accordance with a 
recommendation in a report made by the DIP. The intention of this provision 
was to ensure that the officers could discharge their duties without any fear of 
being influenced by elected Members and being dismissed without good 
reason. 

 
2.2 Concerns have been expressed that the DIP process was in practice 

complex, time consuming and expensive, placing Councils as the employer 
at a great disadvantage in comparison to the position of the employee, 
particularly given that the recommendation of the DIP had to be followed. In 
addition there have been some suggestions that some Councils prefer to 
negotiate severance payments rather than go through the formal DIP 
process. 

Page 3



 

Annual Council  – 14 May 2015 

 
2.3 The new Regulations aim to simplify, as well as localise, the disciplinary 

process for the statutory officers by removing the bureaucratic and 
mandatory requirement that a DIP should be appointed. In the case of a 
proposed disciplinary action against one of the statutory officers, the Council 
is required to invite independent persons who have been appointed for the 
purposes of the Members’ conduct regime under section 28(7) of the 
Localism Act 2011, to form an independent panel. An independent panel will 
be formed if two or more independent persons accept invitations to 
participate and Councils should issue invitations in accordance with the 
following priority order: 

• an independent person who has been appointed by the Council and who 
is a local government elector, 

• any other independent person who has been appointed by the Council, 
such as the Chairman of the Audit Committee, 

• an independent person who has been appointed by another Council or 
Councils. These requirements allow local people to be involved in the 
disciplinary process for senior officers and makes Councils more 
accountable to their community. 

 
2.4 Full Council must consider any advice, views or recommendations from the 

independent panel, the conclusions of any investigation into the proposed 
dismissal, and any representations from the officer concerned, before 
making a final decision on the matter. 

 
2.5 The 2015 Regulations also make a provision limiting the remuneration that 

should be paid to independent persons on the panel to the level of the 
remuneration which they would normally receive as an independent person 
in the conduct regime. The conduct regime remuneration is a modest 
annual allowance or small meeting fee, and this approach ensures that the 
new process will not involve high costs. 

 
3. Legal Implications 

 
3.1 The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 

2015 amend the 2001 Regulations by removing the Designated Independent 
Person procedure. The report sets out in detail the replacement procedure 
which full Council is required to approve and which will necessitate 
consequential amendments to the Council's Constitution. The 2015 
Regulations come into force on 11 May 2015 and therefore full Council 
approval is required no later than its first ordinary meeting falling after this 
date.  

 
4. Financial Implications 

 
4.1 None arising from this report. Remuneration for members of an independent 

Panel would be met from existing resources. 

Page 4



 

Annual Council  – 14 May 2015 

8.2 APPOINTMENT OF CABINET 
 

Members are asked to note the appointment by the Leader of the Council of the 
Deputy Leader and Cabinet for 2015/2016 as follows: 
 

Position/Portfolio Councillor 

Deputy Leader and Education and Children’s 
Services 

David Simmonds 

Central Services Scott Seaman-Digby 

Finance, Property and Business Services Jonathan Bianco 

Community, Commerce and Regeneration Douglas Mills 

Planning, Transportation and Recycling Keith Burrows 

Social Services, Health and Housing Philip Corthorne 

 
In addition, Members are asked to note that responsibility for Council 
Communications will become part of the Cabinet Portfolio of the Leader of the 
Council w.e.f 14 May 2015. 

 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 2015/2016 
 

Annual Council - 14 May 2015 

ORDINARY COMMITTEES 
 
EXECUTIVE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 8 (5-3) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Higgins (proposed Chairman) Khursheed (Lead) 

Riley (proposed Vice-Chairman) Oswell 

Bridges Sweeting 

Crowe  

Denys  

 
Other Voting Members on Education issues only 
 

Parent Governor (3) Vacant 

Church of England Diocesan Representative Vacant 

Roman Catholic Diocesan representative Anthony Little 

 
EXTERNAL SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 8 (5-3) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Riley (proposed Chairman) Jarjussey (Lead) 

Edwards (proposed Vice-Chairman) Burles 

Crowe  Oswell 

Kauffman 

White 

 
CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND LEARNING POLICY OVERVIEW  
COMMITTEE: 9 (6-3) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Palmer (proposed Chairman) Sweeting (Lead) 

Denys (proposed Vice-Chairman) Eginton 

Barnes Money 

Duducu 

Flynn 

Haggar 

 
Other Voting Members 
 

Parent Governor (3) Vacant 

Church of England Diocesan Representative Vacant 

Roman Catholic Diocesan representative Anthony Little 

 
  

Agenda Item 9

Page 7



COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 2015/2016 
 

Annual Council - 14 May 2015 

RESIDENTS’ AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES POLICY OVERVIEW 
COMMITTEE: 9 (6-3) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

White (proposed Chairman) Lakhmana (Lead) 

Barnes (proposed Vice-Chairman) Birah 

Davis Dhot 

Jackson 

Kelly 

Stead 

 
CORPORATE SERVICES AND PARTNERSHIPS POLICY OVERVIEW 
COMMITTEE: 9 (6-3) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Lewis (proposed Chairman) Sansarpuri (Lead) 

R. Mills (proposed Vice-Chairman) Burles 

Bridges Garg 

Denys 

Graham 

Melvin 

 
SOCIAL SERVICES, HOUSING AND PUBLIC HEALTH POLICY OVERVIEW 
COMMITTEE: 9 (6-3) 

 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Bridges (proposed Chairman) East (Lead) 

Barnes (proposed Vice-Chairman) Khatra 

Davis Nelson 

Haggar 

Palmer 

Wallana 

 
SUBSTITUTES FOR SCRUTINY AND POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEES ARE ALL 
COUNCILLORS EXCEPT THOSE IN THE CABINET, GROUP LEADERS AND CHIEF 
WHIPS. 
 
 
CENTRAL & SOUTH PLANNING COMMITTEE: 9 (6-3) 

 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Edwards (proposed Chairman) Dhillon (Lead) 

Yarrow (proposed Vice-Chairman) Duncan 

Chamdal Khatra 

Chapman 

Stead 

Wallana 

 
 
 

Page 8



COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 2015/2016 
 

Annual Council - 14 May 2015 

NORTH PLANNING COMMITTEE: 9 (6-3) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Lavery (proposed Chairman) Curling (Lead) 

Morgan (proposed Vice-Chairman) Morse 

Flynn Oswell 

Graham 

Melvin 

Duducu 

 
MAJOR APPLICATIONS PLANNING COMMITTEE: 9 (6-3) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Lavery (proposed Chairman) Duncan (Lead) 

Edwards (proposed Vice-Chairman) Curling 

Melvin Dhillon 

Morgan 

Stead 

Yarrow 

 
(ALL PLANNING COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ALL THAT HAVE RECEIVED 
APPROPRIATE PLANNING TRAINING TO BE SUBSTITUTES FOR ALL THREE 
COMMITTEES - WITH THE EXCEPTION OF CABINET MEMBERS) 
 
PENSIONS COMMITTEE: 5 (3-2) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Corthorne (proposed Chairman) Eginton (Lead) 

Markham (proposed Vice-
Chairman) 

East 

Davis  

Substitutes Substitutes 

Fyfe Jarjussey 

O’Brien 

 
PENSIONS BOARD: 3 (2-1) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Simmonds (proposed Chairman) Morse 

Chapman (proposed Vice-
Chairman) 

 

 
Scheme Representatives: 
 

Mr Roger Hackett 

Mrs Venetia Rogers 

Mr Andrew Scott 

 
  

Page 9



COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 2015/2016 
 

Annual Council - 14 May 2015 

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE: 8 (5-3) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Puddifoot (proposed Chairman) Khursheed (Lead) 

Simmonds (proposed Vice-
Chairman) 

Duncan 

Burrows Oswell 

D. Mills 

Corthorne 

Substitutes Substitutes 
Bianco East 

Lavery Jarjussey 

Lewis Lakhmana 

Riley Sansarpuri 

Seaman-Digby Sweeting 

 
REGISTRATION & APPEALS COMMITTEE: 8 (5-3) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

O’Brien (proposed Chairman) Allen (Lead) 

R.Mills (proposed Vice-Chairman) Curling 

Bridges  Singh 

Flynn 

Lewis 

Substitutes Substitutes 

Bianco D. Mills All Labour Members except 

Burrows Puddifoot Group Leader, Deputy Leader 

Corthorne Seaman-Digby and Chief Whip 

Dann Simmonds   

Higgins Stead   

Lavery    

 
SUBSTITUTES ON THIS COMMITTEE MAY COMPRISE CABINET MEMBERS FOR 
THE PURPOSES OF BEING MEMBERS OR SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS OF THE 
THREE SUB-COMMITTEES, BUT NO CABINET MEMBERS SHOULD SIT AS 
MEMBERS OF THE MAIN REGISTRATION AND APPEALS COMMITTEE 
 
  

Page 10



COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 2015/2016 
 

Annual Council - 14 May 2015 

OTHER COMMITTEES / PANELS (OUTSIDE THE OVERALL CALCULATION BUT 
ALLOCATED ON THE BASIS OF OVERALL POLITICAL BALANCE 

 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE: 4 (3-1) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Riley (proposed Chairman) Khursheed (Lead) 

Lewis (proposed Vice-Chairman) 

Corthorne 

Substitutes Substitutes 

Denys Duncan 

 Oswell 

Non voting Independent Person 
 

Mr David Smith 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE: 4 (3-1) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Lewis (proposed Vice Chairman) Eginton (Lead) 

Davis  

O’Brien 

Substitutes Substitutes 

Graham East 

R. Mills  

 
Independent Member 
 

Mr Rajiv Vyas (Chairman) 

 
NO MEMBER OF CABINET OR EXECUTIVE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MAY SIT ON 
AUDIT COMMITTEE. 
 
LICENSING COMMITTEE: 10 (6-4) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Gilham (proposed Chairman)  Allen (Lead) 

Yarrow (proposed Vice-Chairman)  Dhillon 

Chamdal Gardner 

Kelly Morse 

Melvin 

Stead 

 
N.B. NO SUBSTITUTES ALLOWED FOR LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
  

Page 11



COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 2015/2016 
 

Annual Council - 14 May 2015 

HILLINGDON DOMESTIC VIOLENCE ACTION FORUM: 3 (2-1) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Palmer (proposed Chairman) 
Gardner (proposed Vice-
Chairman) 

Barnes 

Substitutes Substitutes 

Haggar Curling 

 
APPOINTMENTS SUB COMMITTEE: 4 (3-1) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Puddifoot  Khursheed (Lead) 

D.Mills 

Simmonds 

Substitutes Substitutes 

Bianco  Duncan 

Burrows East 

Corthorne Jarjussey 

Seaman-Digby Lakhmana 

 Oswell 

 Sansarpuri 

 Sweeting 

 
INVESTIGATING AND DISCIPLINARY SUB-COMMITTEE 
(SENIOR OFFICER): 4 (3-1) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Puddifoot  Khursheed (Lead) 

D.Mills 

Simmonds 

Substitutes Substitutes 

Bianco  Allen 

Burrows Curling 

Corthorne Duncan 

Seaman-Digby Sweeting 

 
APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE (SENIOR OFFICER): 4 (3-1) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

To be appointed as required. Khursheed (Lead) 

 
GRIEVANCE SUB-COMMITTEE (SENIOR OFFICER): 4 (3-1) 
 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

To be appointed as required. Khursheed (Lead) 

 
 
 
 

Page 12



COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 2015/2016 
 

Annual Council - 14 May 2015 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE (2-1) 
 
The sub-committee to comprise three Members of the Licensing Committee (2 
Conservative and 1 Labour) selected on a rota basis from the membership of the 
Licensing Committee. Meetings of the Sub-Committee must be chaired by either the 
Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Licensing Committee. 
 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: Outside of the overall calculation and subject 
to the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health 
Scrutiny) Regulations 2013. 
 

Organisation Name of Member Substitute 

STATUTORY MEMBERS (VOTING) 

Chairman Councillor Puddifoot Any Elected Member 

Vice-Chairman Councillor Corthorne Any Elected Member 

Members 

Councillor Simmonds Any Elected Member 

Councillor Mills Any Elected Member 

Councillor Bianco Any Elected Member 

Councillor Burrows Any Elected Member 

Councillor Seaman-
Digby 

Any Elected Member 

Healthwatch Hillingdon Mr Jeff Maslen Mr Stephen Otter 

Clinical Commissioning 
Group 

Dr Ian Goodman Dr Kuldhir Johal 

CO-OPTED MEMBERS (VOTING) 

LBH Ms Jean Palmer N/A 

For information Membership also includes: 

STATUTORY MEMBERS (NON-VOTING) 

Statutory Director of Adult 
Social Services 

Mr Tony Zaman Mr Nick Ellender 

Statutory Director of 
Children’s Services 

Mr Tony Zaman Mr Tom Murphy 

Statutory Director of Public 
Health 

Dr Steve Hajioff Ms Sharon Daye 

CO-OPTED MEMBERS (NON-VOTING) 

The Hillingdon Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust 

Mr Shane DeGaris Mr Richard Sumray  

Central and North West 
London NHS Foundation 
Trust 

Ms Robyn Doran Ms Maria O’Brien 

Royal Brompton and 
Harefield NHS Foundation 
Trust 

Mr Robert J Bell Mr Nick Hunt 

LBH Mr Nigel Dicker N/A 

Page 13



COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 2015/2016 
 

Annual Council - 14 May 2015 

Clinical Commissioning 
Group (Officer) 

Mr Rob Larkman  Ms Ceri Jacob 

Clinical Commissioning 
Group (Clinician) 

Dr Reva Gudi Dr Kuldhir Johal 

 
 
 

Page 14



Policy Overview &  

Scrutiny in Hillingdon 

 

2014 - 2015 
Annual Report 

Agenda Item 10

Page 15



Introduction 
 

 

This report provides the opportunity to review the work and achievements of 

Hillingdon’s Policy Overview & Scrutiny Committees during the 2014/15 

Municipal Year and to highlight key developments. 

 

In Hillingdon, Policy Overview Committees (POCs) are responsible for the 

monitoring of a specific range of Council services.  In addition to these POCs, 

Hillingdon has an Executive Scrutiny Committee, which is responsible for post 

executive-decision scrutiny and call-in, and the External Services Scrutiny 

Committee, which is responsible for scrutinising those services provided by 

non-Council organisations, including health and crime and disorder related 

matters. 

 

Each of these Committees undertakes its role through a series of activities 

which include single meeting reviews and in-depth reviews on specific issues. 

These reviews provide the opportunity to hear from residents, members of 

the public and expert witnesses, including officers from other councils and 

external organisations. 

 

Reviews usually make recommendations to the Cabinet on how the Council 

could further enhance its work.  In addition, the Committees are able to 

request information in response to particular concerns, comment on reports 

to Cabinet for decision and provide useful input into Cabinet’s annual budget 

proposals before they are approved by Council each year.  POCs therefore 

play an important role in ensuring that the Council continues to provide high 

quality, value-for-money services, putting our residents first. 

 

Under the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, 

Policy Overview Committees can consider 'Councillor Calls For Action' 

submissions. These powers enable all Councillors to ask for discussions at 

POCs on issues where local problems have arisen and other methods of 

resolution have been exhausted.  No such Calls for Actions have been 

considered to date.

1 

Page 16



Corporate Services & Partnerships 
 

Councillor Richard Lewis (Chairman) 
 

Councillor Richard Mills (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Robin Sansarpuri (Opposition Lead) 

Councillor Wayne Bridges 

Councillor Raymond Graham 

Councillor Carol Melvin 

Councillor Nick Denys 

Councillor Tony Burles 

Councillor Narinder Garg 

 

Officer Lead: Khalid Ahmed, Democratic Services 

 

Overview 
 

The Committee is responsible for the policy overview role for a broad array of 

Council services provided mainly by the Council’s Administration and Finance 

Directorates.  These include strategic policy and internal functions such as 

finance, property, partnerships, personnel, democratic services, legal services, 

ICT and economic development. The Committee has undertaken two reviews 

this year. 

 

Corporate Complaints Procedure 
 

The review examined the Council's current three stage complaints procedure 

and looked at possible improvements which could be made to enhance this 

important aspect of customer service to the Borough's residents. The priority 

for the review was to investigate further ways in which officers could produce 

a faster resolution to complaints whilst also actively reducing complaints 

escalating by resolving simple service requests, and where complaints do 

arise, to resolve them at the earliest opportunity.  

 

The review was informed that complaints about Council policy, if not resolved, 

were taken through the whole three stage process, rather than officers being 

given the discretion to expedite these types of complaints. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 

Page 17



The Committee made several recommendations to improve the current 

procedures which are contained in the review’s final report that is to be 

considered by Cabinet in May 2015. 

 

The Committee proposes that the current three stage complaints process 

continues and that an updated Corporate Complaints Procedure be submitted 

to Cabinet in autumn 2015. The intervening period will provide sufficient time 

for the Leader of the Council and the Cabinet Member for Community, 

Commerce and Regeneration to consider the implementation of the 

Committee’s streamlining proposals to the three stage process. 

 

Social Housing Fraud 
 

The Committee's second review during this 

municipal year examined the work which 

the Council’s Corporate Fraud Investigation 

Team carried out in relation to the 

detection of Social Housing Fraud.   

 

This Council was at the forefront of this fraud work and the Committee was 

provided with details of the projects which the Corporate Fraud Team was 

involved in. 

 

The prevention of Social Housing Fraud enables the Council to recover social 

housing to ensure that such provision is used by those people who have a 

genuine housing need. The Council's Social Housing Fraud Project commenced 

in October 2010 and since the commencement of the project some 190 

properties have been recovered and re-let to people with genuine housing 

need. This provides the Council with a significant saving through the detection 

of this fraud (over £3m). 

 

The review was made aware of the joint working which took place within the 

Council to ensure that there was cross referencing of information to detect 

such fraud. 

 

The review’s final report will be submitted to Cabinet in June 2015 when the 

work of the Corporate Fraud Team will be endorsed and suggestions will be 

made around further preventing the fraudulent sub-letting of social housing, 

including reminders sent to tenants on their terms of conditions of their 

tenancy agreements and consideration of a policy on Social Housing Tenancy 

Fraud, which could be included within the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption 

Strategy.

3 

Page 18



Children, Young People & Learning 
 

Councillor John Hensley (Chairman) 
 

Councillor Brian Crowe (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Jan Sweeting (Opposition Lead) 

Councillor Nick Denys 

Councillor Jane Palmer 

Councillor Duncan Flynn 

Councillor Jem Duducu 

Councillor Kanwal Dheer (to 11.9.15) 

Councillor Tony Eginton (from 11.9.15) 

Councillor Peter Money 

Mr Anthony Little, Roman Catholic representative 

 

Officer Lead: Jon Pitt, Democratic Services 

 

Overview 
 

The Committee is responsible for the policy overview role in relation to 

education, schools, the early-years service, the youth service, and social care 

services for children and young people. In addition to its wider remit, the 

Committee has undertaken a major review and a single meeting review during 

2014/15.  

 

The review topics chosen aimed to cover issues that affected a significant 

number of children and young people in the Borough. This followed on from 

the previous municipal year when both the reviews undertaken by the 

Committee focused on children and young people in the care of the Council. 

 

Reducing the Risk of Young People Engaging in Criminal Activity 

and Anti-Social Behaviour 
 

The Committee initially agreed to investigate how to reduce serious youth 

violence and the emerging risk of gangs in Hillingdon. However, it was felt that 

such a review could duplicate work being undertaken separately as part of the 

Ending Gang and Youth Violence Peer Review programme.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4 

Page 19



The review topic was changed to look at the broader issue of young people 

becoming involved in crime and anti-social behaviour. The aim was for the 

major review to complement rather than replicate the peer review. 

 

The major review explored the factors that contributed towards young people 

becoming involved in criminal activity and anti-social behaviour. The link 

between illicit drugs and involvement in youth crime and anti-social behaviour 

became obvious in the early stages of the Committee's investigations. 

 

Bearing in mind the dual objectives of helping to prevent young people from 

becoming involved in crime and anti-social behaviour, and the support of 

young people that had offended previously, the Committee developed 

recommendations around the following themes: 

 

1. Improving Support - These recommendations focused on the need for 

the amount of preventative work to be increased, in order to steer 

young people away from becoming involved in crime and anti-social 

behaviour in the first place. The possibility was also put forward of 

kick-starting a Parenting Forum / Network and regular seminars for 

parents of young offenders or young people at risk of becoming 

involved in crime or anti-social behaviour. 

 

2. Improving Awareness and Communication - This included the 

availability of suitable recreational activities, promotion of such 

activities to young people and their parents and the provision of 

educational information about crime and drugs. The need for 

enhanced partnership working and information sharing between the 

Council and other organisations was also identified. 

 

Some of the information and suggestions received by the Committee during 

the review related to issues that the Council had no direct control over. The 

Committee felt that it was important to include this information in the final 

report. These observations will be shared with relevant external partners, 

such as the Metropolitan Police. 

 

Following Cabinet approval of the 

recommendations in March 2015 and in 

accordance with the Committee's annual 

work programme, progress on 

implementation of the recommendations 

will be formally reported back to the 

Committee in March 2016. 

 

5 

Page 20



Hillingdon's Implementation of the Special Educational Needs and 

Disability (SEND) Reforms 
 

The Children and Families Act 2014 introduced the most significant changes 

seen for thirty years to the statutory framework for Special Educational Needs 

and Disability (SEND). Hillingdon's implementation of the SEND Reforms was 

chosen as a review topic due to the wide ranging nature of the Reforms and 

likely impact on all children and young people aged 0 to 25 with SEND. 

 

Major changes brought about by the reforms included the new requirement 

for local authorities to produce a ‘Local Offer’, setting out services available 

within the Borough for children and young people aged 0 to 25 with SEND. 

The other significant change was the replacement of SEN (Special Educational 

Needs) Statements with more comprehensive EHC (Education, Health and 

Care) Plans. 

 

The Committee recognised the significant work already undertaken to 

implement the SEND Reforms within Hillingdon and that this had been well 

received by parents and schools. The recommendations made reflected the 

achievements to date and the ongoing nature of the Reforms, which were not 

expected to be fully implemented until 2018. The key recommendations made 

related to the following areas: 

 

1. The availability and presentation of information contained in the SEND 

Local Offer. 

2. Ensuring the ongoing involvement of parents / carers. 

3. Provision of training for school staff in relation to local implementation 

of the Reforms. 

4. Ensuring that schools, parents/carers and young people have the 

opportunity to provide feedback on their experience of the reforms to 

date. 

 

It was also proposed that given the ongoing nature of the reforms, a progress 

report would be provided to the Cabinet Member and to the Committee later 

in 2015, with the expectation being that the Committee would continue to 

monitor the implementation of the Reforms over the next few years. 

 

The Committee's review on Hillingdon's implementation of the SEND Reforms 

and the recommendations made were supported and agreed by the Cabinet 

in April 2015. 

6 

Page 21



Page 22



Residents' & Environmental Services 
 

Councillor Michael White (Chairman) 
 

Councillor David Yarrow (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Kuldeep Lakhmana (Opposition Lead) 

Councillor Carol Melvin 

Councillor Patricia Jackson 

Councillor Peter Davis 

Councillor Teji Barnes 

Councillor Lynne Allen 

Councillor Mohinder Birah 

 

Officer Lead: Ainsley Gilbert, Democratic Services 

Overview 
 

The Committee is responsible for the policy overview role for a diverse range 

of Council services including libraries, leisure centres, parks, community 

safety, highways, planning, waste management, trading standards and many 

others. A theme common to the remit is that services are universal and often 

central to residents’ quality of life. Over the year, the Committee considered 

reports on topics such as byelaws in parks, flooding, safety at sports grounds, 

war memorials, cemetery regulations and fly tipping, in addition to two 

reviews and giving detailed consideration to the Cabinet's budget proposals. 

 

Diversifying the Street Champions Initiative  
 

Hillingdon runs a successful Street Champions Scheme which encourages 

residents to report issues in their local areas to the Council. As the scheme 

had been running for nine years, Members felt that the time had come for a 

review. The Committee found that the initiative continued to be well liked and 

supported by residents, but there was a need for updating it in some areas. 

There were also a number of people registered as street champions who had 

not reported issues for a long period of time, which the Committee felt should 

be looked into further. As a result of this, the Council has now re-contacted 

individual Street Champions and refreshed the list of those involved in the 

Scheme. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7 

Page 23



To maintain existing membership and attract a new generation of volunteers, 

the Committee explored ways to further recognise the valued work of 

volunteers, the use of digital technology, innovations using the Customer 

Relationship Management system and to also make more use of social media. 

Members also thought that Councillors could make good use of data collected 

as part of the scheme and that closer working between Members and Street 

Champions would add value. As a result of this, the Cabinet Member for 

Community, Commerce and Regeneration initiated a quarterly ward-level 

summary report to Members outlining the contacts, queries and trends in 

reporting by Street Champions to the Council. The Committee’s findings will 

be considered by Cabinet in due course.   

 

 

Hillingdon's Footpaths and Bridleways 
 

Hillingdon contains a large number of 

Footpaths and Bridleways, which are 

valued by residents and visitors, both 

as ways of getting about and for 

recreational use.  

 

The Borough manages 69 miles of right of way, as well as a similarly vast 

network of permissive paths and bridleways. These routes spread right across 

the Borough, with routes passing through a diverse range of areas, from the 

tranquil Ruislip Woods National Nature Reserve, to the bustle of Uxbridge 

town centre.  

 

The review aimed to look at both the effectiveness of the current cleaning and 

maintenance regime, as well as the reporting process for residents and indeed 

whether there was scope for more resident involvement in the delivery of the 

service.  

 

The Committee found that the cleaning and maintenance of footpaths and 

bridleways was already very good. The Hillingdon Ramblers praised the quality 

of the service and the officers delivering it. Members were particularly 

impressed with the use of Blue Sky Development and Regeneration (a 

contractor working exclusively with ex-offenders), the volunteering sessions 

arranged by the Green Spaces team and the responsiveness of the service.  

 

The review made recommendations to Cabinet in April 2015 which were 

approved and related to the organisation of cleaning schedules, the recording 

of data and engagement with user groups to help enhance an already very 

good service.  
8 

Page 24



Social Services, Housing  

& Public Health 
  

Councillor Judith Cooper (Chairman) to 6.11.14 

Councillor Wayne Bridges (Chairman) from 6.11.14 
 

Councillor Teji Barnes (Vice-Chairman) from 6.11.14 

Councillor Beulah East (Opposition Lead) 

Councillor Ian Edwards 

Councillor Becky Haggar 

Councillor Shehryar Wallana 

Councillor Peter Davis (from 6.11.14) 

Councillor Manjit Khatra (from 6.11.14 to 15.01.15) 

Councillor John Oswell (from 15.01.15) 

Councillor Jas Dhot 

Former Councillor David Horne (to 23.10.14) 

Co-Opted Member: Mrs Mary O’Connor (Health, Disabilities 

and Wellbeing Champion) 

 

Officer Lead: Charles Francis, Democratic Services 

 

Overview 
 

The Social Services, Housing & Public Health Policy Overview Committee is 

responsible for undertaking the policy overview role in relation to the 

Council’s Adult Social Care, Public Health and Housing responsibilities.  In 

addition to monitoring performance, considering the Budget and receiving 

several overview reports on Public Health, the Committee has also completed 

two reviews during 2014/2015. 
 

Hillingdon’s Shared Lives Scheme 
 

The main piece of work undertaken by the Committee over the last 12 months 

was a review into Hillingdon’s Shared Lives Scheme. Shared Lives operates by 

putting a Shared Lives carer in touch with someone who needs support so that 

they get to know each other over time, and once a bond has been formed, 

they share family and community life. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9 

Page 25



Building upon the learning and understanding  established during the 

Committee’s previous reviews of the Personalisation agenda, the Committee 

were acutely aware of how important it was to provide accommodation, care 

and support to all residents with long term care needs and, in particular, those 

whom are vulnerable and in need of greater assistance. 

 

The objective of the review was to examine the effectiveness of the current 

arrangements for the Shared Lives Scheme and to propose improvements 

which could be made to enhance this important aspect of independent living 

for some of the Borough's residents. 

 

To do this, the Committee gained an understanding of what the Scheme was 

and how it operated, as well as how it was performing in comparison to other 

neighbouring Local Authorities.  

 

The second aspect of the review focused on developing proposals to improve 

the Shared Lives Scheme and suggest ways in which the Scheme might be 

taken forward in the future. Having considered these twin aspects, the 

Committee concluded that, within existing resources, consideration should be 

given to doubling the size of the current provision at first and then possibly to 

further expansion at some point in the future. 

  

The Committee's recommendations were considered and agreed by Cabinet in 

February 2015 and their implementation will be monitored by the Committee 

going forward. 

 

Child Oral Health 
 

The Committee's second topic this year was 

to review and assess Child Oral Health in 

Hillingdon.  

 

Members felt this especially important as dental decay remains the main 

cause of hospital admissions for children aged less than 18 years and good 

oral health is an integral part of overall health. 

 

The aim of the review was to investigate the causes of poor oral health and 

the health implications if this was not addressed. The review also looked at 

the remedial action being taken by the Council, in conjunction with partners, 

and what might be done in the future. 

 

As well as hearing about where roles and responsibilities laid for dental health 

care and prevention, the Committee were informed about the positive action 

10 

Page 26



currently being undertaken by the Council and its partners to improve oral 

health.  

 

Key messages that emerged from the review included the importance of joint 

working and ensuring a concerted approach was taken, but also the value in 

raising awareness and monitoring progress.  The review identified the need 

for improved links between the three organisations responsible for dental 

health (the Council, Public Health England and NHS England).  

 

In addition, it highlighted there was scope to improve and develop 

performance information across these organisations and the Committee will 

recommend that a baseline, beginning in early 2015, should be established so 

this could be used as a yardstick to monitor future progress. 

 

This review will be considered by Cabinet in May 2015, where the Committee 

will recommend a further report (incorporating key performance indicators) in 

partnership with Public Health England and NHS England on the uptake and 

effectiveness of dentistry services for children and for this to be referred to 

the Cabinet Member for Social Services, Health and Housing and to the 

External Services Scrutiny Committee or Health and Wellbeing Board as 

appropriate for consideration in 2016. 

 

 

 

11 

Page 27



Page 28



Executive Scrutiny
 

Councillor Henry Higgins (Chairman) 
 

Councillor John Riley (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Mo Khursheed (Leader of the Opposition) 

Councillor Wayne Bridges 

Councillor Brian Crowe 

Councillor Allan Kauffman 

Councillor Janet Duncan 

Councillor Tony Eginton (to 11.9.2014) 

Councillor Jan Sweeting (from 11.9. 2014) 

Mr Anthony Little - Roman Catholic Diocesan 

representative (on education related matters only) 

 
Officer Lead: Mark Braddock, Democratic Services 

 

 

Scrutiny of decision-making 
 

A period of 5 working days must elapse before any formal key decision taken 

by the Cabinet or Cabinet Member can be implemented by officers. The 

Executive Scrutiny Committee’s primary role is therefore to scrutinise such 

decisions that have been taken but have not yet been implemented.  

 

This is known as the ‘call-in’ power. If the Executive Scrutiny Committee 

considers any of these decisions to be deficient, they may refer the decision 

back to the Cabinet or Cabinet Member(s) for further consideration. The 

Committee use a set of criteria to guide them in this process. The Committee 

meets immediately after the conclusion of a meeting of the Cabinet to enable 

Members to review the decisions taken and, if agreed by a majority, give 

consideration to the potential for the call-in of a particular matter. 

 

During 2014/15, no call-in of any Cabinet or executive decision was made. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
12 

Page 29



The Chairman of the Executive Scrutiny Committee has the constitutional role 

of being able to waive the ‘call-in’ power where a decision is deemed urgent 

by the Cabinet or Cabinet Member and any delay would prejudice the 

Council’s or the public’s interest or could lead to an (increased) risk of damage 

to people or property. This enables such decisions to be implemented with 

immediate effect. They are otherwise known as "urgency" or "special 

urgency" decisions depending on the necessity of the matter. 

 

During 2014/15, out of around 500 

executive decisions, the Chairman carefully 

considered and agreed to the waiver of the 

call-in power for 60 such decisions to assist 

critical service delivery, particularly around 

the priority School Capital Programme. 

 

The Chairman also plays a constitutional role 

in being notified of any future key decisions, 

primarily to the Cabinet, where it has been 

impracticable to give sufficient notice of a 

decision in the Forward Plan. 

 

To assist in their deliberations, the Committee requested clarification on a 

number of matters within individual Cabinet reports, which were responded 

to by officers after the meeting. 

 

13 

Page 30



External Services Scrutiny 

Councillor John Riley (Chairman) 
 

Councillor Ian Edwards (Vice Chairman) 

Councillor Phoday Jarjussey (Opposition Lead) 

Councillor Michael Markham 

Councillor Michael White 

Councillor Judy Kelly 

Councillor June Nelson 

Councillor Tony Burles 

 

Officer Leads: Nikki O’Halloran and Danielle Watson, 

Democratic Services 

 

 

 

The role of external scrutiny 
 

The External Services Scrutiny Committee has a broad remit to scrutinise all 

non-Hillingdon Council organisations whose actions affect Hillingdon 

residents.   

 

This Committee also undertakes the health scrutiny role as required by the 

Health & Social Care Act 2001 and acts as the Crime and Disorder Committee 

as defined in the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 

2009.  

 

As well as undertaking light touch reviews and receiving update reports (in 

relation to Prevent, the substance misuse contract, Shaping A Healthier 

Future, primary care co-commissioning, the new policing model and the Safer 

Hillingdon Partnership), and monitoring the performance of the local NHS 

Trusts (with a view to providing evidence to the CQC), the Committee has also 

completed one major review during 2014/2015 and two single meeting 

reviews which have resulted in reports to Cabinet. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14 

Page 31



Policing and Mental Health Services 
 

One of the main pieces of work undertaken by the Committee over the last 12 

months was a review into Policing and Mental Health. A Working Group was 

established and chaired by Councillor Ian Edwards to carry out the review. 

 

Members focussed on the operation of Section 136 and preventative work 

and investigated how local agencies worked in partnership to reduce the 

impact that mental health had on police time, whilst also ensuring that those 

experiencing mental health issues - and not suspected of any criminal offence 

- should be dealt with by the appropriate professional in a dignified way. 

 

The review highlighted areas for further 

partnership work along with preventative 

action to assist in reducing the number of 

people getting to the stage where they 

need to be detained under Section 136.   

The Committee's review on Policing and Mental Health and its 

recommendations were agreed by the Cabinet in April 2015. Additionally, the 

Metropolitan Police Service (Hillingdon) welcomed the findings and stated 

that this was testament to a greater understanding of mental illness. 

 

Hillingdon Police, with their partners, affirmed they were working tirelessly to 

improve the service that they deliver to those challenged with a mental illness.  

 

Child Sexual Exploitation  
 

The Committee undertook a single meeting review into child sexual 

exploitation (CSE) and, as the issue was cross-cutting, the Chairmen and 

Opposition Leads from the Social Services, Health and Housing and Children, 

Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committees joined the 

Committee.  The review looked at the procedures and practices already in 

place in the Borough in relation to CSE and highlighted a number of areas for 

possible improvement.   

 

The primary finding of the Committee was in relation to the provision of CSE 

training.  Although training was already provided by many organisations to 

their staff, as part of the Council's wider efforts tackling CSE, the Committee 

recommended that officers be asked to further develop a programme of joint 

CSE training in partnership with the Metropolitan Police Service, LSCP, CNWL 

and the CCG.  The provision of a suite of modular face-to-face training 

covering a range of issues including CSE, Female Genital Mutilation (FGM), 
15 

Page 32



radicalisation, etc..., would provide a more sustainable solution which could 

be delivered to professionals in frontline roles across all agencies.  This 

training could then be backed up with the provision of e-learning to reach a 

wider audience.  It is anticipated that this approach would provide the 

different agencies with more of an insight into, and understanding of, the 

issues faced by the other disciplines. 

 

Other matters raised by the Committee (but not included in the 

recommendations to Cabinet) included consideration of: joint development 

and commissioning by the Council and Central and North West London NHS 

Foundation Trust (CNWL) in relation to early intervention and training in 

schools; the provision of clearer information online, e.g. the Council's website, 

to enable people to find out how to report abuse; and officers, in conjunction 

with CNWL, liaising with schools to highlight the importance of raising young 

people's awareness of CSE and encouraging the inclusion of CSE as a 

permanent part of PSHE lessons.   

 

Moving forward, it is anticipated that the Hillingdon CSE Strategy and Action 

Plan will build on the pro-active multi-agency work which is already 

undertaken in Hillingdon. The aim is to provide a framework for all 

professionals working with children and young people in the Borough to 

deliver a programme designed to raise awareness of CSE in age appropriate 

ways and provide them with the appropriate life skills in order to prevent 

them becoming involved in sexual exploitation. 

 

The Committee's findings from the review were incorporated into a report 

which also sought Cabinet approval of the Hillingdon Child Sexual Exploitation 

Strategy and Action Plan.  Both elements of this report, and all of its 

recommendations, were supported and agreed by the Cabinet in April 2015.   

 

 

 

Family Law Reforms  
 

The Committee also undertook a second single meeting review, in conjunction 

with the Chairman and Opposition Lead of the Children, Young People and 

Learning Policy Overview Committee into recent changes to Family Law. 

 

Members were delighted that Her Honour Judge Judith Rowe QC (Designated 

Family Judge for West London sitting at the West London Family Court) 

agreed to attend the meeting where she outlined the implications of the 

legislative changes that had recently come into force and answered questions 

from the Committee and Council officers.  It was pleasing to note the 

16 

Page 33



comments made by Judge Rowe in relation to the steady and significant 

improvement in the processing of cases in Hillingdon, which had received 

excellent feedback from court staff and judges.  Judge Rowe confirmed that 

Hillingdon's performance had significantly improved over the last six months 

and was now one of the best in this court area.  

 

Improvements already undertaken in Hillingdon meant that officers were able 

to track cases more effectively and at an earlier stage.  As a result, there had 

been a reduction in social workers' caseloads and the quality and timeliness of 

assessments has improved.  Legal planning meetings were now also 

undertaken earlier to ensure good pre-proceedings work and to establish 

timelines before going to court.  

 

Following this review, there were a range of improvements which will help 

maintain the momentum of these positive changes, including: the 

appointment of an in-house advocate; the use of a report template which sets 

out the assessments that need to be undertaken and any other requirements 

that need to be met; a reduction by Judges in the number of ‘expert’ 

witnesses needed in proceedings; and improvements to the provision of 

mediation services.   

 

It is anticipated that the Committee's final report and recommendations will 

be considered by the Cabinet at its meeting in May 2015. 

 

Scrutiny
 

17 

Page 34



Previous reviews 

 

Policy Overview and Scrutiny Committees have undertaken comprehensive 

reviews of local public service provision since 2002, with their findings 

incorporated into the core work the Council and its partners do to put 

residents first. Details of past reviews over the last 5 years are set out below. 

Copies of all reviews are available to read on the Council’s website. 

 

2013/14 

Stigma: The Effect on Residents’ Mental and Physical Health in the 

Borough  

Review of Anti-Social Behaviour Partnership Working in the Borough 

The Causes of Tenancy Failure and how it can be Prevented 

Using Our Water: Improving Efficiency and Developing Long-Term 

Strategies  

Improving Outcomes for Care Leavers Not in Education, Employment or 

Training (NEET) 

Strengthening the Council’s Role as a Corporate Parent 

Reducing our Carbon Footprint 

 

2012/13 

Community Cohesion and the accessing of Council services 

Crime Prevention Resources provided for Hillingdon Police and the free 

Older Peoples Burglar Alarms Scheme 

Leaving Care Grant 

Safeguarding of Children that go Missing 

Access to Education for Hillingdon’s Vulnerable Children and Young 

People 

Review of the Regulations and Byelaws relating to Cemeteries and 

Burial Grounds within Hillingdon 

Review of local pest control services and the impact of waste 

management processes on them 

Review of Adult Community Mental Health Services 

Special Constables 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18 

Page 35



2011/12 

Effectiveness of the Audit Committee and its Terms of Reference 

Operation and Function of Hillingdon First Card 

Elective Home Education 

Adoption & Permanency 

The Review of Mobile Technology and Telecommunications Equipment 

in Hillingdon Borough and beyond 

Personalisation and Disabilities with Reference to Transition 

Population Flows and the Impact on Housing Services in Hillingdon 

Re-Offending 

Dementia 

 

2010/11 

Census 2011 – To look at how this Council can contribute to improving 

the Population data for the Borough 

Personal Safety of Members of the Council when meeting with 

members of the public 

The Hillingdon Khat Review 

Review of Hillingdon’s Town Twinning Relationships 

Review of 14-19 Education & Training 

To examine the use of Assistive Technology by Adult Social Care to 

Support Independent Living 

Hillingdon Centre for Independent Living (Looking at Efficiencies, 

Services & Fully Costed Options) 

Health Inequalities – Effect of Overcrowding on Educational Attainment 

and Children’s Development 

Children’s Self Harm 

 

2009/10 
Impact of a Pandemic in Hillingdon and the Effects on Council Services 

Success of New Business Start Up within Hillingdon and how the 

Council could improve Business to Business Support  

Reviewing whether current arrangements and future plans to support 

inclusive practice in Hillingdon schools are effective 

Reviewing current arrangements and future plans for safeguarding 

children at Heathrow Airport as a port of entry 

A Review of Street Lighting 

A Review of Planning Enforcement (‘Homes’ in back gardens) 

A Review of Counterfeit Cosmetics and Illegally Imported Foods 

The Transformation Agenda and Direct Payments in Hillingdon 

The Hillingdon Centre for Independent Living 

Children & Young People Who Abuse Their Parents & Carers 
19 

Page 36



Involving residents & partners  

 

Members on Policy Overview and Scrutiny Committees actively seek to involve 

residents, interest groups, private and public organisations in the policy reviews 

their respective Committees undertake.  

 

Strong witness testimony has, and continues to provide added value to the 

Committee's findings presented to the Cabinet for approval.  2014/15 was no 

exception, with the following external witnesses engaging in this important aspect 

of Hillingdon's democratic process: 

 

 

Health & Partners 
 

Metropolitan Police Service 

Hillingdon Safer 

Neighbourhood Board 

Hillingdon Clinical 

Commissioning Group 

Healthwatch Hillingdon 

The Hillingdon Hospitals 

NHS Foundation Trust 

Royal Brompton and 

Harefield NHS Foundation 

Trust 

Central and North West 

London Foundation Trust  

Public Health England 

NHS England (North West) 

Dental and Ophthalmic 

Services 

London-wide Local Medical 

Committee 

London Ambulance Service 

London Fire Brigade 

 

 

 Residents & Users 
 

Street Champions 

Carers 

Young Offenders 

Parents of Young 

Offenders 

Unique Swagga 

programme 

representatives 

Shared Lives Service 

users 

Graduate from the 

Young Leaders' 

Programme 

Children's Worker 

Northwood Hills 

Residents' 

Association 

Bridleway User 

 

 Organisations 
 

Hillingdon Mind 

Hillingdon Drug & 

Alcohol Service 

Hillingdon Parents 

Carers Forum 

Hillingdon Ramblers 

Local Government 

Ombudsman 

West London Family 

Court - Her Honour 

Judge Judith Rowe QC 

- Designated Family 

Judge 

Hedgewood School 

Abbotsfield School 

London Borough of 

Harrow 

London Borough of 

Ealing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20 

Page 37



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Democratic Services  

London Borough of Hillingdon 

Council AGM 14 May 2015 

Page 38


	Agenda
	8 Report of the Head of Democratic Services
	9 Committee Allocations and Membership 2015/2016
	10 Policy Overview and Scrutiny Committees Annual Report

